Santa Barbara City College College Planning Council Tuesday, January 29, 2013 3:00 – 4:30 p.m. A218C Minutes

PRESENT

L. Auchincloss, Pres., CSEA;
P. Bishop, VP Information Technology;
R. Else, Sr. Dir. Inst. Assessment, Research & Planning;
P. English, VP HR;
J. Friedlander, Executive VP Ed Programs;
J. McPheter, Classified Staff Representative;
M. Medel, Supervisory Bargaining Unit;
K. Monda, Academic Senate Representative,
Chair Planning & Resources Committee;
D. Morris, VP, Academic Senate;
K. Neufeld, President-elect, Academic Senate;
D. Nevins, President, Academic Senate;
K. O'Connor, Academic Senate Representative;
C. Salazar, Classified Staff Representative;

- G. Sherman, President, Assoc. Student Body;
- J. Sullivan, VP Business Services

ABSENT: L. Gaskin, President

GUESTS:

- C. Alsheimer, IA/Senate Liaison;
- R. Bublitz, Asso. Professor, Culinary Arts:
- P. Butler, ESL;
- A. Olguin, Psychology & Social Sciences;
- J. Pike, Director, Learning Resource Center;
- L. Stark, Pres. Instructors' Association;
- E. Stoddard, Parenting Education;
- J. Walker, Supervisory Bargaining Unit

1.0 CALL TO ORDER

- 1.1 Dr. Friedlander called the meeting to order. Members and guests introduced themselves.
- **1.2** M/S/C (Sullivan/Nevins) to approve the 11/20/12 CPC minutes with the following two corrections:

Zero Based Budgets must be submitted to their immediate supervisors for review by 2/11/13, and reviewed and completed by the area VP by 2/25/13. A detailed count of votes on motions will be recorded in the minutes thus accounting for those voting for, against and abstaining.

All were in favor of approving the minutes with corrections.

1.3 M/S/C (Nevins/O'Connor) to approve the 12/4/12 CPC minutes. Eleven in favor of approval; two abstentions.

2.0 ANNOUNCEMENTS

2.1 There were no announcements.

3.0 INFORMATION ITEMS

3.1 Revised Reorganization Structure for CE – J. Freidlander (Att.3.1)

The history of the CE Reorganization chart was reviewed. Due to the early resignation of Dr. Arellano, VP of Continuing Education, the goal to integrate CE programs into Educational Programs has been accelerated by six months. It was noted that seven of the eight classified CE employees whose positions were eliminated have been transferred to other positions within the college, and it is expected that the eighth employee will be placed in a full-time position at the college by the end of the academic year. Dr. Friedlander will keep CPC informed of significant changes in the Educational Programs organizational chart that is affected by the integration of Continuing Education reorganization.

3.2 Vacant Position: Bookstore – J. Sullivan

After thorough evaluation by Business Services, the decision was made to fill the vacant Textbook Buyer position in the Bookstore. The position is funded by non-general fund auxiliary accounts.

3.3 Refilling of Budgeted Classified Vacancies – P. English (Att.3.3)

The rationale submitted by the area VPs for the refilling of vacant classified positions will be discussed at the Feb. 4, 2013 EC+ meeting. The recommendations of EC+ on the positions to be filled will be presented to CPC at its February 5, 2013 meeting.

3.4 CurricUNET Upgrade – J. Friedlander

CurricUNET is a curriculum management system used by the Chancellor's Office and most California community colleges. SBCC has capitalized on the \$5,000 discount that was offered to colleges for agreeing to purchase the upgraded version by the end of this past December. The on-going annual cost for the license will be included in Dr. Friedlander's 2013-14 Zero Based Budget. The \$15,000 to pay for the new version of CurricUNET and technical assistance needed to be implemented will be deducted from the 2012-13 budget. The new version of CurricUNET is expected to be available in May 2013.

4.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS

5.0 ACTION ITEMS

5.1 Special Report to Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges Addressing Warning Status: Second Reading – J. Friedlander (Att. 5.1)

It was noted that the report does not reflect the changes resulting from the CE reorganization to the CE program. Dr. Friedlander will submit those changes to update the report. Errors on pages 26, 35 and 47 will be reviewed and addressed by Robert Else. CPC was assured that the recommendations in response to the Accreditation Report from three years ago have been addressed in the Mid-Term Report that was approved by CPC in October 2012.

M/S/C (Bishop/Sullivan) to approve the Second Reading. All were in favor.

5.2 New Classified Staff Position: Curriculum Coordinator – J. Friedlander

The various reasons the Curriculum Coordinator position is warranted were discussed. Justifications included the need to centralize the management of curriculum related processes; remain compliant with local, state, and accreditation requirements; and avoid fines for claiming apportionment for that was not compliant with attendance accounting requirements. This full time position is considered the college's highest priority. It will be paid from by the General Fund and will initially report to the Executive Vice President or another administrator he designates. The responsibilities for this position are listed in Att. 5.2.

M/S/C (Bishop/Nevin) to approve the Curriculum Coordinator Position. Eleven approved; one opposed; one abstention.

5.3 CPC Membership: First Reading – J. Friedlander

In response to the accreditation Special Report's finding of the limited formal involvement of the managers' group in participatory governance structure, Dr. Gaskin has requested that the vacant CPC seat that was designated for the VP of Continuing Education be filled with a representative from the managers' group. The managers' group includes the all the non-Teamster managers. It was agreed that a detailed list of employees with titles included in the managers' group will be provided to CPC in advance of its next meeting. Support for the inclusion of a representative from the managers' group and from the Teamster's group on CPC was voiced.

6.0 ADJOURNMENT

6.1 The next regularly scheduled CPC meeting will be Tuesday, February 5, 2013 in Room 1218C, 3:00-4:30 p.m.

Management Group - January 2013

Incumbent

BAILEY, Jack BROWN, Kathy BYRNE, Ryan CLARK, Jim COFFIELD, Sharon CURTIS, Allison DOMINGUEZ-FLORES, Carol

ELSE, Robert ESQUEDA, Angie ESTRELLA, Virginia FRICKE, Erik GALVAN, Joan HARDISON, Bradley HARPER, Andrew HARRIS, Kendall

HENDRICKS, Julie

HERSH, Douglas HOLLEMS, Diane

MARTIN DEL CAMPO, Francisco

MORALES, Robert

MORENO, Melissa PARTEE, Ben PAZICH, Betty RIZO, Elisabeth SCHAFFNER, Bonita SCHARPER, Alice SMITH, Carola SOPHIEA, Karen SPAVENTA, Marilynn SULLIVAN, Marc Vacant Vacant TOWER, Rosie WATKINS, Daniel WRIGHT, Marsha **Position title**

Director, Continuing Education **Director**. Bookstore Operations **Director of Athletics** Director, Information Tech. User Services Assistant Controller Associate Dean, Student Support Services Director, Continuing Education Sr. Director of Institutional Assessment, Research, and Planning Executive Assistant to the President/Board MESA Program Coordinator Director, Security Public Information Officer Director, Financial Aid Director, Continuing Education Director, Continuing Education Director, Facilities & Campus Development

Dean, Educational Programs Dean, Educational Programs Director, Registration and Technology, Continuing Education Director – Administrative Services & Emergency Response Coordinator, Entrepreneurship Program Dean, Educational Programs Dean, Educational Programs Director, Orfalea Early Learning Center Dean, Continuing Education Dean, Educational Programs Senior Director, Educational Programs **Director, Marketing & Publications** Dean, Educational Programs Director, Food Service Controller **Executive Director - CLL Payroll Manager** Director, Info. Tech. Infrastructure & Systems

Director, EOPS/CARE

Teamsters Supervisory Unit January 2013

Incumbent

BERMUDES, Barbara DIXON, Shelly GYLL, Brad LASKER, Pamela LOMELI, Gaspar MAHAFFEY, Nina MARTINEZ, Jose MEDEL, Mike MURRAY, Joshua OSTERHAGE, Judy SUMMERSON, Angela Vacant WALKER, Jason WINTERMEYER, Lauren WONG, David

Position title

Student Finance Manager Professional Development Center Coordinator Maintenance Supervisor Theatre Operations Supervisor Custodial Supervisor Cartwright Learning Center Supervisor Coordinator, Community Education Center Student Outreach & Orientation Coordinator CE Facilities Supervisor Foster Care Education Coordinator Admissions & Records Supervisor Grounds Maintenance Supervisor Director, Educational Applications Dual Enrollment Coordinator Director, Instructional Technology

SBCC CONTINUING EDUCATION DIVISON Calendar 2013-2014

SUMMER 2013 TERM

(8 weeks: June 24 – August 17*)	June	24	Mon	Summer Term begins
	July	4	Thu	July 4 th Holiday
	Aug.	17	Sat	Summer Term ends*

*AHS/GED/ESL/PECS Program & Other certificate/diploma program schedules may vary outside of standard Term.

FALL 2013 TERM

(10 weeks: Sept. 9 – Nov. 16*)	Sept.	9	Mon	Fall Term begins
	Nov.	11	Mon	Veteran's Day Holiday
	Nov.	16	Sat	Fall Term ends
	Nov.	28-30	Thu-Sat	Thanksgiving Holidays
	Nov.	18-Jan. 11	Mon-Mon	No classes*; Winter break
	Dec.	25-Jan. 1	Wed-Wed	Winter Holidays; SBCC offices closed

*AHS/GED/ESL/PECS Program & Other certificate/diploma program schedules may vary outside of standard Term.

WINTER 2014 TERM

(10 weeks: Jan. 13 - March 22*)	Jan.	13	Mon	Winter Term begins
	Jan.	20	Mon	M.L. King, Jr. Holiday
	Feb.	14-17		President's Day Weekend
	Mar.	22	Sat	Winter Term ends*
	Mar.	24-Apr. 5	Mon-Sat	Spring Break; no classes

*AHS/GED/ESL/PECS Program & Other certificate/diploma program schedules may vary outside of standard Term.

SPRING 2014 TERM

(10 weeks: April 7 – June 14*)

Apr.	7	Mon	Spring Term begins
May	26	Mon	Memorial Day Holiday
June	14	Sat	Spring term ends*

*AHS/GED/ESL/PECS Program & Other certificate/diploma program schedules may vary outside of standard Term.

FRAMING OUR FUTURE:

MISSION STATEMENT REVIEW PROCESS 2012-2013

Santa Barbara City College 721 Cliff Drive Santa Barbara, CA 93101 <u>sbcc.cc.ca.us</u>

Table of Contents

Role of a Mission Statement

Rationale for Reviewing the Mission Statement

Process for the Mission Statement Review

Themes from Interviews

Framing Our Future Retreat

Appendix 1: SBCC Mission Statement Adopted in 2008

Role of a Mission Statement

A mission statement answers the question, "Who are we?"

An effective mission statement is a clear, concise statement of the institution's purpose and direction. This statement is printed on documents across the college to inform and remind everyone about our purpose today and the path we will follow into the future. In keeping with the standards of the Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges, the mission statement defines"...the institution's broad educational purposes, its intended student populations, and its commitment to achieving student learning."

But a mission statement is important for reasons other than compliance with accreditation standards. Our mission statement clarifies our purpose and unites our efforts toward achievement of a shared vision of our college in the future. Once established, we develop plans and measure our successes based on how we define ourselves in our mission statement.

Given this basic role, the mission statement is the touchstone for all planning processes. The institution initiates and refines plans in order to move us forward in fulfilling our mission. We are successful to the extent that we achieve our mission.

Rationale for Reviewing the Mission Statement

SBCC's current mission statement was reviewed and discussed during 2007 – 2008. These discussions led to a revised mission statement that was approved by the Board in fall 2008. Is this mission statement as relevant today as it was four years ago?

Many changes in the past four years directly impact our mission as a community college. Students' demand for courses at our college has increased at the same time that the state has been significantly reducing the funding for our college. The place of technology as a tool for teaching and learning has expanded. State policies and regulations have shifted from a focus on student access to a focus on student success and goal attainment. And through pilot programs and our analysis of student learning outcomes, we've gained a better understanding of those factors that have an effect on how students learn.

Economists predict that many of the changes created by the recession are permanent. Our nation has lost jobs that are unlikely to return. Our state is re-focusing and narrowing the community college mission. State funding is unlikely to return to previous levels.

For all of these reasons, it is time for another discussion about our mission statement. It is time to analyze who we are today in the context of the changes around us. Through this process of reviewing our mission statement, we are proactive in reassessing and refining our purpose. By embracing the changes and charting a course that fits the culture of our college as well as today's realities, we assume some control over the direction our college takes.

Our Board of Trustees understands the importance of the college's mission statement in planning and assessing institutional effectiveness. Therefore, the Board established "...reviewing the college mission statement" as a goal for 2012- 2013.

Process for the Mission Statement Review

The process for reviewing our mission statement included three phases.

1. Interviews

Interviews about the mission were conducted in fall 2012. The 18 members of the College Planning Council and the Executive Council were interviewed one-on-one. In addition, six groups were interviewed: Academic Senate, Classified Consultation Group, Deans' Council, Student Senate, Managers' Group, and the Board of Trustees. The interview questions included, "Who are we?" and "What are our priorities as we move into a future of permanently reduced funding?" The interview results follow.

2. Framing Our Future Retreat

A College Planning Council retreat was held on January 23, 2013. The retreat group included College Planning Council members plus two additional representatives from these six constituent groups: Academic Senate, Student Senate, Executive Council, Classified Consultation Group, Board of Trustees, and the Supervisory Bargaining Unit. These members of the college community met to review the results of the interviews and to draft a revised mission statement. A summary of the retreat follows.

3. College-wide Consultation

The draft mission statement was submitted to the College Planning Council and members were asked to seek feedback on this draft from their constituents. Based on this feedback, the mission statement will be revised as warranted, and a final recommendation will be submitted to the Superintendent/President. The Superintendent/President will present the final recommendation to the Board of Trustees at the March Study Session and will present the proposed mission statement for second reading and action at the Board's regular meeting in March.

Themes from Interviews

The interview participants almost unanimously agreed that the current SBCC mission statement should be streamlined in order to convey a more focused institutional purpose. The specific themes that that emerged from the total of 12 hours of interviews are summarized below.

Why do students want to attend SBCC?

- Location
 - Beach
 - UCSB
 - Beautiful campus
 - Local
- Academic reputation
 - Transfer institution
 - Student support
 - Excellent faculty
 - Range of learning environments
- Welcoming to students
 - Student life
 - Energy on campus
 - Safe
 - Family connections

What is necessary to maintain our reputation?

- Keep doing what we do well
- Value faculty and staff so they focus on students
- Collaborate with the community

What are our priorities as we move into a future of permanently reduced funding?

- Quality
- Opening doors/gateway/portal
- Students first/student-centered
- Academics and CTE
- Recent HS grads
- Success in a global workforce
- Success for all students

- State's priorities
- Students' goals (help them discover them and then help them meet them)
- Bridge between non-credit and credit
- Welcoming to students who are not yet our students
- Open access
- Freedom to explore
- Strong work ethic
- Love of learning
- Good citizens and global citizens
- Innovation

Framing Our Future Retreat

The following College Planning Council members plus two additional representatives from six constituent groups met on January 23, 2013:

College Planning Council

Lori Gaskin, Chair Liz Auchincloss, President CSEA Paul Bishop, VP, Information Technology Robert Else, Senior Director, Assessment, Research, and Planning Pat English, VP, Human Resources Jack Friedlander, Executive VP, Educational Programs Joyce McPeter, Classified Staff Representative Michael Medel, Supervisors Bargaining Unit Representative Kimberly Monda, Academic Senate Representative David Morris, Academic Senate VP Kenley Neufeld, Academic Senate President-Elect Kathy O'Connor, Academic Senate Representative Cindy Salazar, Classified Staff Representative Joseph Sullivan, VP, Business Services

Two Representatives from these Constituent Groups

Academic Senate: Priscilla Butler and Laurie Vasquez Associated Students: Ashley Jeter and Justin P. (?) Board of Trustees: Marty Blum and Marianne Kugler Classified Consultation Group: Donna Waggoner and Elizabeth Stein Executive Council: Dan Watkins and Ben Partee Supervisors Bargaining Unit: Jason Walker and Shelly Dixon

The group reviewed the interview results and discussed the meaning of each theme in the context of a mission. The group then prioritized the themes. The following four themes were ranked the group's top priorities:

- 1. Opening doors/gateway/portal
- 2. Students first/student-centered
- 3. Freedom to explore/discover passion
- 4. Good citizens and global citizens

The larger group divided into smaller groups and each small group used the top priority themes as the basis for drafting a mission statement. The resulting mission statement drafts were:

- 1. To provide students with an educational environment that fosters global responsibility, inspires discovery and passion, and embraces access for all.
- 2. SBCC provides students opportunities to discover their educational and career goals in a supportive, student-focused learning environment that prepares them for global citizenship.
- 3. SBCC creates pathways for students to discover their passions and realize their educational and career goals in the context of their local and global communities.
- 4. Through a student-centered ethos, SBCC draws upon dedication and expertise in order to provide opportunity for personal growth, discovery of individual passions, freedom to explore, and awareness of one's place in the world.
- 5. SBCC encourages students in a diverse learning environment to discover their passion by offering them opportunities to build the skills and knowledge they need to pursue it and become contributing members of our global community.
- SBCC embraces all students in their journey of educational self-discovery, fueling minds, creating portals of opportunity, and cultivating a global ethic in an environment of excellence and commitment.

The retreat members ranked these draft mission statements and revised the top-ranking draft. The final draft mission statement that will be distributed for college-wide review is:

SBCC provides students a diverse learning environment that inspires discovery and passion, fosters global responsibility, and embraces opportunity for all.

Appendix 1: SBCC Mission Statement Adopted in 2008

Santa Barbara City College is committed to the success of each student, providing a variety of ways for students to access outstanding and affordable higher education programs that foster lifelong learning. SBCC works to ensure academic success for all students as they earn a degree or certificate, prepare for transfer, or gain the occupational competencies and academic skills needed to advance in their careers.

The College serves all segments of its diverse community by maintaining quality programs, by collaborating with local organizations to identify new educational needs and develop programs to meet those needs, and by continually expanding its efforts to meet the educational needs of traditionally underserved groups. The College responds to the needs of the South Coast community by offering a comprehensive continuing (adult) education program and developing programs that support economic development. As part of that larger community, SBCC is also committed to valuing the dynamic diversity of the community and to adopting sustainable practices and exercising good citizenship.

SBCC promotes student learning and development through the attainment of Institutional Student Learning Outcomes that measure student achievement in critical thinking, problem solving, and creative thinking; communication; quantitative analysis and scientific reasoning; social, cultural, environmental, and aesthetic perspectives; information, technology, and media literacy; personal, academic, and career development.

Approved by the Board of Trustees, September, 2008

DRAFT

SANTA BARBARA CITY COLLEGE

Mission

CPC Plus Retreat: January 23, 2013

Mission

As a public community college dedicated to our students' success . . .

Santa Barbara City College provides students a diverse learning environment that inspires discovery and passion, fosters global responsibility, and embraces opportunity for all.

Core Principles

Santa Barbara City College encourages and supports instructional improvement and innovation that increases the quality and effectiveness of its programs based upon these core principles:

- Policies, practices, and programs that are student-centered;
- Shared governance involving all segments of the college community;
- An environment that is psychologically and physically supportive of teaching and student learning;
- A free exchange of ideas in a community of learners that embraces the full spectrum of human diversity; and
- A commitment to excellence in all college endeavors.

Our Purpose

Serving as the foundation for Santa Barbara City College's mission and core principles is a commitment to honoring the spirit and intent of the foundational framework of the California Community Colleges as described in California Education Code §66010.4.

(a) (1) The California Community Colleges shall, as a primary mission, offer academic and vocational instruction at the lower division level for both younger and older students, including those persons returning to school. Public community colleges shall offer instruction through but not beyond the second year of college. These institutions may grant the associate in arts and the associate in science degree.

(2) In addition to the primary mission of academic and vocational instruction, the community colleges shall offer instruction and courses to achieve all of the following:

(A) The provision of remedial instruction for those in need of it and, in conjunction with the school districts, instruction in English as a second language, adult noncredit instruction, and support services which help students succeed at the postsecondary level are reaffirmed and supported as essential and important functions of the community colleges.

(B) The provision of adult noncredit education curricula in areas defined as being in the state's interest is an essential and important function of the community colleges.

(C) The provision of community services courses and programs is an authorized function of the community colleges so long as their provision is compatible with an institution's ability to meet its obligations in its primary missions.

(3) A primary mission of the California Community Colleges is to advance California's economic growth and global competitiveness through education, training, and services that contribute to continuous work force improvement.

(4) The community colleges may conduct to the extent that state funding is provided, institutional research concerning student learning and retention as is needed to facilitate their educational missions.

Att. 5.3

Santa Barbara City College Resource Guide to Governance and Decision-making

> Santa Barbara City College 721 Cliff Drive Santa Barbara, CA 93101 <u>sbcc.cc.ca.us</u>

Santa Barbara City College Resource Guide to Governance and Decision-making

Introduction

Roles of Constituents in Governance and Decision-making

Board of Trustees Superintendent/President Faculty Staff Students Administrators

Types of Groups

Governance Groups Organizational Groups Ad Hoc Groups

SBCC Governance Groups

Academic Senate

Curriculum Advisory Committee
Associated Students (Student Senate)
Classified Consultation Group
College Planning Council
Managers' Group

SBCC Organizational Groups

Board Policy and Administrative Procedures Deans' Council District Technology Committee Executive Council

SBCC Ad Hoc Groups

Appendices

- A. Working Conditions Groups
- B. California Code of Regulations for Collegial Consultation Academic Senate (Title 5, Sections 53200 - 53206) Staff (Title 5, Section 51023.5)

Students (Title 5, Section 51023.7)

Board Policies are available online at http://www.sbcc.edu/boardoftrustees/board_policies_procedures.php

INTRODUCTION

Santa Barbara City College's (SBCC) approach to governance and decision-making is based on a partnership among Board members, faculty, staff, administration, and students. The constituent groups are united by a collective, shared vision that student success is the goal of everyone's work at SBCC.

The purpose of this resource guide is to describe the governance and decision-making processes by which SBCC ensures that there are opportunities for meaningful collaboration and that the voices of the constituent groups are heard in making decisions. This document includes the purpose, membership, and reporting structure for each group.

This Santa Barbara City College Resource Guide to Governance and Decision-making Manual is reviewed and updated annually to maintain credibility as a valuable resource. The annual update prepared by College Planning Council reflects minor changes, such as in descriptions, timelines, or processes. In addition to this annual review of content, the processes described in this document are periodically assessed by the College Planning Council. This assessment occurs as part of SBCC's assessment of its planning processes. Following this assessment, the College Planning Council reviews the results and recommends revisions to decision-making processes as warranted based on that assessment. The Santa Barbara City College Resource Guide to Governance and Decision-making Manual is then updated to reflect any agreed-upon changes. Through these two review processes, one completed on an annual basis and one completed periodically, this document is maintained to reflect the inevitable changes in decision-making processes that are to be expected as part of SBCC's cycle of continuous quality improvement.

ROLES OF CONSTITUENTS IN GOVERNANCE AND DECISION-MAKING

The constituents in SBCC participate in making decisions appropriate in scope to their roles within the college. The role in making decisions for each constituency described below is derived from the California Code of Regulations, SBCC Board Policies, and SBCC practices, procedures and job descriptions. The relevant sections of the California Code of Regulations are included in the appendix of this document.

Board of Trustees

The role of the Board of Trustees in making decisions is to determine policy and to serve as SBCC's legal and fiduciary body.

The Board of Trustees maintains, operates, and governs the total operations of the entire district in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. As an independent policy-making body responsible for policies as well as legal and fiscal issues, the Board's ultimate responsibility is to ensure that the SBCC mission is fulfilled and that SBCC's financial resources are dedicated to providing sound educational programs.

The Board of Trustees consists of seven locally elected Trustees who represent areas within the district. One trustee is elected by the qualified voters from each of the seven trustee areas to serve four-year terms. The Board annually elects a president and vice president from among its members and the Superintendent/President serves as the Board Secretary.

A student trustee is elected annually in a general student election. The Student Trustee provides a student perspective on the issues facing the Board. The Student Trustee receives all materials sent to other members of the Board, except those pertaining to closed session matters; attend all open session board meetings; ask questions; participate in discussions; and cast an advisory, nonbinding vote on the matters that come before the Board.

California State Education Code Section 70902 identifies the Board of Trustees as the SBCC's legal and fiduciary body and outlines associated responsibilities. The Board affirms its role and responsibilities in *Board Policy 2200: Board Duties and Responsibilities*, which details a list of specific duties, including selecting and appointing the Superintendent/President.

Superintendent/President

The authority delegated to this position by the Board of Trustees determines the role of the SBCC Superintendent/President in making decisions.

The Superintendent/President is the chief executive officer of SBCC and as the sole employee of the Board is responsible directly to the Board. The Board delegates to the Superintendent/President the executive responsibility for administering the policies adopted by the Board and executing all decisions of the Board requiring administrative action. (See *Board Policy 2430: Delegation of Authority to Superintendent/President.*)

Faculty

The role of full- and part-time faculty members in making decisions at SBCC is to participate in:

- The development of recommendations to the Superintendent/President and Board of Trustees on academic and professional matters as outlined in state regulations and
- The processes for developing recommendations that have or will have a significant effect on them.

The Academic Senate represents faculty members in academic and professional matters. As provided in *Board Policy 2510: Participation in Local Decision-Making*, the Board of Trustees recognizes the authority of the Academic Senate with respect to academic and professional matters in accord with provisions of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations. In its policy, the Board agrees to consult collegially with the Academic Senate on the following academic and professional matters:

- 1. Curriculum, including the establishment of prerequisites and placing courses within disciplines.
- 2. Degree and certificate requirements.
- 3. Grading policies.
- 4. Educational program development.
- 5. Standards or policies regarding student preparation and success.
- 6. District and College governance structures as related to faculty roles.
- 7. Faculty roles and involvement in accreditation processes, including self-study and annual reports.
- 8. Policies for faculty professional development activities.
- 9. Processes for program review.
- 10. Processes for institutional planning and budget development.
- 11. Other academic and professional matters as mutually agreed upon between the governing board and the academic senate.

Faculty hiring processes are included is academic and professional matters and the Board has agreed to consult collegially with the Academic Senate on these processes.

A resource describing the role of the Academic Senate in governance and decision-making is the California Code of Regulations Title 5, Section 53200 included in the appendix of this document.

Classified and Confidential Staff

The role of classified and confidential staff members in making decisions is to participate in:

- The development of recommendations to the Superintendent/President on issues that have or will have a significant effect on them and
- The processes for developing those recommendations.

The specific matters identified as having a significant effect on classified staff are identified in the California Code of Regulations Title 5, Section 51023.5 included in the appendix of this document.

Board Policy 2510 Participation in Local Decision-Making affirms that recommendations and positions developed by classified and confidential staff will be given every reasonable consideration prior to action on a matter having a significant effect on them.

Students

The role of students in making decisions at SBCC is to participate in:

- The development of recommendations to the Superintendent/President on issues that have or will have a significant effect on them and
- The processes for developing those recommendations.

The following specific matters are identified in the California Code of Regulations Title 5, Section 51023.7 as having a significant effect on students:

- 1. Grading policies.
- 2. Codes of student conduct.
- 3. Academic disciplinary policies.
- 4. Curriculum development.
- 5. Courses or programs that should be initiated or discontinued.
- 6. Processes for institutional planning and budget development.
- 7. Standards and policies regarding student preparation and success.
- 8. Student services planning and development.
- 9. Student fees within the authority of the district to adopt.

10. Any other district and college policy, procedure or related matter that the district governing board determines will have significant effect on students.

The Board recognizes the Santa Barbara City College Associated Student organization as the official voice for students (*Board Policy 5400: Students Organizations*). In accordance with *Board Policy 2510 Participation in Local Decision-Making*, the Associated Student organization is given an opportunity to participate effectively in the formulation and development of policies and procedures that have a significant effect on them, and the recommendations and positions of the Associated Student organization are given reasonable consideration.

Administrators

The role of administrators in making decisions at the college is determined by the scope of responsibility and authority delegated in job descriptions for administrative positions.

Although there are position-specific representative duties, in general SBCC administrators are responsible to:

- Plan, organize, control and direct assigned programs.
- Coordinate and direct communications, personnel, projects and resources to meet college needs and oversee assigned activities.
- Assure that program implementation satisfies established college, state and federal standards, requirements, laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies and procedures.
- Supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned faculty and classified personnel and assure that the work of these employees complies with established standards, requirements, and procedures.
- Interview potential employees and recommend hiring, transfers, and reassignment.
- Monitor and analyze assigned operations, activities, departments and programs to determine educational and financial effectiveness and operational efficiency.
- Provide consultation and technical expertise to administrators, faculty and others concerning assigned programs and related standards, requirements, practices, schedules, strategies, plans, goals, objectives, laws, codes, regulations, polices and procedures.

• Develop and prepare the annual preliminary budget for assigned programs; analyze and review budgetary and financial data.

TYPES OF GROUPS

Within this context of a primary focus on students, governance and decision-making at SBCC is grounded in respect for the role and scope of authority for each constituency. Key committees have representation from the various constituent groups and members understand that they are responsible to their particular constituency in two ways: to share input from the constituent group to the committee and to share information and dialogue from the committee with their constituent group. Committee members also understand that their collective work product is a recommendation that is subsequently forwarded to the next individual or group in the decision-making process.

The SBCC groups that provide recommendations in governance and decision-making processes are organized into three categories based on the group's responsibilities and its source of authority. The groups in all three categories are essential to the involvement of the SBCC community in both being informed about issues of college-wide importance, making decisions, and serving as conduits of information to and from the constituents. The membership in each type of group is determined by the source of authority on which the group is based.

1. <u>Governance Groups</u>

Governance groups are those whose authority is derived from law and regulation, either as written expressly in the law/regulation or as delegated by another group that possesses said authority. Members of governance groups represent specific constituencies and as such, serve as a liaison to bring information from the constituent group into the dialogue and from the governance group back to their constituents. Examples of governance groups are the Academic Senate, Student Senate, and Classified Consultation Group.

2. Organizational Groups

Organizational groups assist the Superintendent/President in implementing the Board's plans and policies by coordinating operational, procedural, and policy implementation. The authority for the members of organizational groups is derived from the Board of Trustees or the Superintendent/President through the assignment of responsibilities on job descriptions and appointment to positions. Membership in SBCC organizational groups is determined by the position held within the college. Examples of organizational groups are Deans' Council, Managers' Group, and Executive Council.

3. Ad Hoc Groups

Ad Hoc Groups are formed to create a venue for dialogue and work on topics or

projects that require timely and concentrated energy. Instead of being required by law or regulation, these groups are charged by the Superintendent/President or a governance group to perform specific functions that benefit the entire college. Membership in an ad hoc group is either voluntary or by appointment.

SBCC GOVERNANCE GROUPS

Governance groups are those whose authority is derived from law and regulation, either as written expressly in the law/regulation or as delegated by another group that possesses said authority. Members of SBCC governance groups represent specific constituencies and as such, serve as liaisons to bring information from the constituent groups into the dialogue and from the governance group back to their constituents. There are four SBCC governance groups:

- Academic Senate
- Associated Students (Student Senate)
- Classified Consultation Group
- College Planning Council
- Managers' Group

The primary role and responsibility of each group is described in the **Purpose** on the following pages.

Academic Senate

Purpose

The Academic Senate is a governance and consultative body that represents the SBCC faculty. The term faculty includes all classroom instructors and non-administrative staff required to meet minimum qualifications for faculty as outlined in AB 1725 that are employed either full-time or part-time. The Academic Senate represents the faculty in collegial governance relating to academic and professional matters as defined in Board policy and the California Code of Regulations as described previously in this document.

The Academic Senate meets at least twice monthly to:

- Serve as a forum for consideration of matters of significance to faculty;
- Review and recommend policies concerning academic issues to appropriate college units, Superintendent/President, and Board of Trustees;
- Advise the Superintendent/President and the Board of Trustees in matters of faculty concern;
- Define faculty goals, priorities, strategies, and makes recommendations to appropriate college units;
- Function as an academic planning body for the college in pursuit of its mission;
- Defines academic priorities for allocations of resources with input from the Office of Educational Programs;
- Review resource requests from academic units, and recommends specific resource allocations to the College Planning Council;
- Constitute, oversee, and maintain Academic Senate committees;
- Assign faculty to Academic Senate committees and college-wide committees;
- Submit an annual written report summarizing the activities of the Academic Senate to Administration, Board of Trustees and Senators and makes report available to all tenure track faculty.

Website: https://www.sbcc.edu/academicsenate/

Membership

- Three Academic Senate Officers: President, Vice President, and President-Elect or Immediate Past President
- One or two senators representing each of the following academic areas:
 - Business Education Division
 - Educational Support Division
 - English/English Skills Division
 - Fine Arts Division

- Modern Languages/ESL Division
- Health and Human Services Division
- Mathematics Division
- Physical Education/Athletics Division
- Sciences Division
- Social Science Division
- Technologies Division
- Adjunct Faculty

The number of senators representing a division is contingent on the number of faculty in the division; divisions with fewer than 26 tenure-track faculty have one senator and divisions with 26 or more tenure-track faculty have two division senators.

- Student Senate Representative (non-voting)
- Executive Vice President of Educational Programs (non-voting)

The Academic Senate conducts its business through the efforts of the following standing and ad hoc committees:

- Academic Policies Committee Purpose:
 - 1. Recommends policies to protect academic freedom and scholastic standards and policies for evaluation of faculty.
 - 2. Reviews applications and makes recommendations for salary class transfer.
 - 3. Makes recommendations on faculty requests to waive committee service.
 - 4. Makes recommendations on appeals regarding teacher load policy issues.
 - 5. Reviews and makes recommendation to Academic Senate for action when integrity of a faculty member is questioned.
 - 6. Reviews policy and procedures for assignment of faculty to Faculty Service Areas (FSAs).
 - 7. Reviews requests and assigns faculty to FSAs.
- Committee on Teaching and Learning Purpose:
 - 1. Identify and facilitate the incorporation of strategies that enhance student success in the classroom and through campus learning support services (Library and LRC).
 - 2. Work closely with instructional faculty and Student Services to integrate student success initiatives campus-wide.
 - 3. Serve as liaison between faculty and Library staff on policies affecting utilization

of the library, its resources and other faculty matters.

- 4. Serve as liaison between faculty and Learning Support Services staff on policies affecting utilization of the Learning Support Services, its resources and other faculty matters.
- 5. Provide oversight and general direction on tutorial allocations, and policies for operation of the LSS (Library/LRC).
- Faculty Professional Development Purpose:
 - 1. Provides advice and support for Director of Faculty Resource Center/Faculty Professional Development.
 - 2. Reviews and approves FPD activities. Reviews/revises/updates FPDC Guidelines annually or as needed.
 - 3. In cooperation with the Office of Educational Programs and Director of FPD, plans, develops, and implements faculty in-service days.
 - 4. Recommends and participates in planning FPD activities.
 - 5. Hears appeals from faculty relating to professional development activities.
 - 6. Reviews applications for FPD funding and recommends awards.
- Faculty Recognition Committee

Purpose: The purpose of Faculty Professional Development is to provide time for faculty to participate in development activities that are related to "staff, student, and instructional improvement." (Title 5, sec. 55720). The Faculty Professional Development Committee, in cooperation with the Director of Faculty Professional Development, is the oversight body for determining the appropriateness of all Faculty Professional Development activities.

- Instructional Technology Committee
 Purpose:
 - 1. Provide guidelines and leadership in the development of the instructional technology plan for Educational Programs.
 - 2. Serve as advisory committee to the Faculty Resource Center.
 - 3. Review proposals and make recommendations for funding of requests to acquire computer technology.
 - 4. Provide guidelines and makes recommendations for campus-wide software and platform upgrades and decisions.
 - 5. Serve as a liaison to the District Technology Committee.
- Planning and Resources

Purpose:

- 1. Establishes and maintains liaison with the Offices of Educational Programs and Business Affairs.
- 2. Meets at least once each semester with the Educational Programs Executive Vice President and Deans to clarify academic goals and identify major initiatives that facilitate achievement of stated goals.
- 3. Establishes and reviews academic priorities and the philosophical framework that drives the budget planning process.
- 4. Develops policy regarding faculty consultation on academic initiatives and resource issues.
- 5. Makes recommendations from Educational Programs and the faculty regarding budget priorities and major academic initiatives.
- 6. Serves as expert faculty resource committee on academic-related budget issues.
- Sabbatical Leave Committee Purpose:
 - 1. Assists faculty in preparing sabbatical leave proposals and reports.
 - 2. Reviews, updates and circulates the Sabbatical Leave Handbook.
 - 3. Establishes criteria for proposals and reports using the Board of Trustees policy on sabbatical leaves as a guideline.
 - 4. Reviews and makes recommendations on proposals and reports to the Academic Senate.

Academic Senate Subcommittee: Curriculum Advisory Committee

Purpose

As identified in Education Code 53200(c), the purpose of the Curriculum Advisory Committee is to:

- 1. Review and approve all proposed changes and additions to college curriculum.
- 2. Review other college functions related to curriculum.
- 3. Advise the Executive Vice-President, Educational Programs, on curriculum development.
- 4. Review the general education requirements and recommend changes as appropriate.

Membership *To be Added*

Associated Students (Student Senate)

Purpose

The Associated Students organization (Student Senate) is a governance and consultative body that represents SBCC students in making recommendations on issues that have or will have a significant impact on them. The Board of Trustees recognizes this Associated Student organization as the official voice of the students.

The goals of the Associated Student organization (Student Senate) are to:

- 1. Ensure effective student representation in the SBCC participatory governance process;
- 2. Further cooperation and communication between and among students, faculty, classified staff, and the community;
- 3. Oversee the activities of student clubs and organizations; and
- 4. Monitor and assign use of the Student Representation fee to ensure that SBCC students are represented at local and statewide activities.

The Student Senate offers the following activities to SBCC students:

- Merchants' bazaars;
- Blood drives;
- Inter-club Council;
- Conferences and workshops;
- Political candidate forums; and
- Leadership seminars

Membership

Students are elected by the student body to serve in the Associated Students organization. Elections are held annually in the spring and student representatives are elected at large. Students interested in serving in this capacity apply to stand for election in one of these positions:

- President
- Vice President of Senate Affairs
- Vice President of External Affairs
- Vice President of Operations and Finance
- Student Trustee
- Public Relations Officer
- Student Advocate
- Commissioner of Clubs
- Senator (8)
Classified Consultation Group

Purpose

The Classified Consultation Group is a governance and consultative body that represents the SBCC classified staff and CSEA on issues that will be addressed by the College Planning Council.

Membership

- Three classified staff members who serve on the College Planning Council
- Four representatives total from these areas:
 - Bookstore/Fiscal/Clerical/Confidential/Information Booth/Switchboard/Food Service/Library/Duplicating/Purchasing/Security/Facilities
- Two representatives from these areas:
 - Student Services/Health Services
 - Athletic/Instructional Support/Theater/Auto
- One representative from IT/Institutional Research
- One member at large

College Planning Council

Purpose

The College Planning Council meets twice monthly to:

- Make recommendations to the Superintendent/President on the budget, the integration of planning and resource allocation, and other matters of the college;
- Promote communication and foster an awareness among the students, faculty, classified staff and administration concerning the welfare, growth, and sustainable quality improvement at SBCC;
- Identify common areas of concern that require further study and forward these to the appropriate governance or operational group;
- Oversee the development, evaluation and integration of the Educational Master Plan; and
- Monitor compliance with accreditation standards related to college functions.

Membership

- Superintendent/President, Chair
- Executive Vice President
- Three Vice Presidents: Business Services, Human Resources, and Information Technology
- One representative of the Managers' Group
- Four representatives of the Academic Senate: President, Vice President, President-elect, and one faculty member appointed by the Academic Senate President
- Chair of Planning and Resources Committee (an Academic Senate sub-committee)
- One representative of Teamsters Union, Local 186, the supervisory bargaining unit
- President, CSEA
- Two representatives of Classified Consultation Group appointed by CSEA
- Senior Director of Institutional Assessment, Research and Planning (non-voting)
- Associated Student Senate President (non-voting)

Managers' Group

Purpose

The Management Group is a governance and consultative body that includes all SBCC administrators. The purpose of this group is to coordinate activities college-wide and serve as a discussion forum for issues of college-wide importance.

Membership

• All managers

SBCC ORGANIZATIONAL GROUPS

SBCC organizational groups coordinate operational, procedural and policy implementation. The authority for the members of organizational groups is through the assignment of responsibilities on job descriptions and appointment to positions within the college. Individuals other than those identified on this list are invited to attend meetings to share information or expertise as needed.

The organizational groups at SBCC are:

- Board Policies and Administrative Procedures
- Deans' Council
- District Technology Committee
- Executive Council

The purpose and membership of each of these organizational groups follow.

Board Policies and Administrative Procedures

Purpose:

- 1. Systematically review Board policies and administrative procedures to ensure that these are in compliance with ACCJC standards and state and federal laws and regulations.
- 2. Develop a schedule to address existing gaps in Board policies and administrative procedures.
- 3. Make recommendations to the Superintendent/President when revisions or additions to Board policies and administrative procedures are warranted.

Membership:

- Vice President, Human Resources (Chair)
- One manager appointed by the Superintendent/President
- One Dean appointed by Deans' Council
- Three faculty appointed by the Academic Senate
- Three classified staff appointed by the CSEA
- One student appointed by the Student Senate

Deans' Council

Purpose:

- 1. Advise the Executive Vice President on instructional and student services issues related to the budget; planning; accreditation; curriculum, and enrollment management
- 2. Implement administrative procedures and oversee the day-to-day operations of the SBCC instructional and student services

Membership:

- Executive Vice President (Chair)
- Six Deans
- One Associate Dean
- Academic Senate President
- Marketing and Publications Director
- Athletic Director

District Technology Committee

Purpose:

- 1. Make recommendations to the College Planning Council on IT planning priorities, new IT resources and requests, IT policies.
- 2. Oversee and implement the District Technology Plan.
- 3. Purchase and oversee installation of campus technology including both replacement and new hardware and software.
- 4. Assess the effectiveness of technology planning on each of the following five benchmarks: (1) customer needs and expectations; (2) empowerment of the individual; (3) efficient and effective operational processes; (4) maintaining a competitive edge; (5) and relevance to both the College Plan and the District Technology Plan.
- 5. Serve as technical support and resources to units of the College that using technology to serve students, faculty, staff, and community-based organizations.
- 6. Oversee and receive recommendations from two workgroups: Administrative Applications Workgroup and Technology Coordination Group.

Membership:

- Vice President, Information Technology (Chair)
- Vice President, Business Services
- Five faculty appointed by the Academic Senate, at least one of whom also serves on the Academic Senate's Instructional Technology Committee
- One representative from each of the following areas:
 - Continuing Education
 - Human Resources
 - Student Services
 - Educational Programs
- Three classified staff appointed by the CSEA
- Director, Network Services
- Director, User Support Services
- One student appointed by the Student Senate

Executive Council

Purpose:

- 1. Advise the Superintendent/President on matters of policy; budget; planning; accreditation; and other matters of the college.
- 2. Implement and administer policies, procedures, and day-to-day operations of the college.
- 3. Review and discuss implementation of policy decisions made by the Board regarding the operations of the college.

Membership:

- Superintendent/President (Chair)
- Executive Vice President
- Vice President, Human Resources
- Vice President, Information Services
- Vice President, Business Services

In addition to these organizational groups, the college conducts its business of serving students through the efforts of the following program-specific and department-specific organizational groups:

- Admissions: Student Outreach and Orientation
- Business Services Management Group
- Enrollment Management Committee
- EOPS/Financial Aid Advisory Committee
- Facilities/Safety/Security/Parking Advisory Committee
- Honors Advisory Committee
- International Education Advisory Committee
- Matriculation Advisory Committee
- Partnership for Student Success Committee
- Personnel Benefits Advisory Committee
- Portal Steering Committee
- Scholastic Standards Committee

SBCC AD HOC GROUPS

Ad Hoc Groups are formed to create a venue for dialogue and work on topics or projects that require timely and concentrated energy. Instead of being required by law or regulation, these groups are established as needed and are charged by the Superintendent/President or a governance group to perform specific functions that benefit the entire college. Membership in an ad hoc workgroup is either voluntary or by appointment.

APPENDIX A

Working Conditions Groups

SBCC employees are represented by collective bargaining or meet and confer groups for issues related to working conditions, such as salary, benefits, and workload. These working conditions groups are listed below.

<u>Classified Staff:</u> For matters related to working conditions within the scope of collective bargaining, classified staff are represented by the California Schools Employees Association, Chapter 289.

<u>Confidential Staff:</u> For matters related to working conditions, confidential employees are represented by the Confidential Employees' Meet and Confer Group.

<u>Faculty:</u> For matters related to working conditions within the scope of collective bargaining, permanent credit and credit adjunct faculty are represented by the Instructors' Association.

<u>Managers:</u> For matters related to working conditions, managers, including all educational administrators such as deans and directors, are represented by the Management Employees Meet and Confer Group.

<u>Supervisors:</u> For matters related to working conditions within the scope of collective bargaining, managers with "supervisor" in their position title are represented by the Teamsters Union, Local 186.

APPENDIX B

California Code of Regulations for Collegial Consultation

Title 5 § 53200. Definitions.

For the purpose of this Sub chapter:

- a. "Faculty" means those employees of a community college district who are employed in positions that are not designated as supervisory or management for the purposes of Article 5 (commencing with Section 3540) of Chapter 10.7 of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code, and for which minimum qualifications for hire are specified by the Board of Governors.
- b. "Academic senate," "faculty council," and "faculty senate" means an organization formed in accordance with the provisions of this Sub chapter whose primary function, as the representative of the faculty, is to make recommendations to the administration of a college and to the governing board of a district with respect to academic and professional matters. For purposes of this Sub chapter, reference to the term "academic senate" also constitutes reference to "faculty council" or "faculty senate."
- c. "Academic and professional matters" means the following policy development and implementation matters:
 - 1. curriculum, including establishing prerequisites and placing courses within disciplines;
 - 2. degree and certificate requirements;
 - 3. grading policies;
 - 4. educational program development;
 - 5. standards or policies regarding student preparation and success;
 - 6. district and college governance structures, as related to faculty roles;
 - 7. faculty roles and involvement in accreditation processes, including self-studies and annual reports;
 - 8. policies for faculty professional development activities;
 - 9. processes for program review;
 - 10. processes for institutional planning and budget development; and
 - 11. other academic and professional matters as are mutually agreed upon between the governing board and the academic senate.
- d. "Consult collegially" means that the district governing board shall develop policies on academic and professional matters through either or both of the following methods, according to its own discretion:
 - 1. relying primarily upon the advice and judgment of the academic senate; or
 - 2. agreeing that the district governing board, or such representatives as it may

designate, and the representatives of the academic senate shall have the obligation to reach mutual agreement by written resolution, regulation, or policy of the governing board effectuating such recommendations.

Title 5 § 53201. Academic Senate or Faculty Council

In order that the faculty may have a formal and effective procedure for participating in the formation and implementation of district policies on academic and professional matters, an academic senate may be established at the college and/or district levels.

Title 5 § 53202. Formation; Procedures; Membership.

The following procedure shall be used to establish an academic senate:

- a. The full-time faculty of a community college shall vote by secret ballot to form an academic senate.
- b. In multi-college districts, the full-time faculty of the district colleges may vote on whether or not to form a district academic senate. Such vote shall be by secret ballot.
- c. The governing board of a district shall recognize the academic senate and authorize the faculty to:
 - 1. Fix and amend by vote of the full-time faculty the composition, structure, and procedures of the academic senate.
 - 2. Provide for the selection, in accordance with accepted democratic election procedures, the members of the academic senate.
- e. The full-time faculty may provide for the membership and participation of part-time faculty members in the academic senate.
- f. In the absence of any full-time faculty members in a community college, the part-time faculty of such community college may form an academic senate.

Title 5 § 53203. Powers.

- a. The governing board of a community college district shall adopt policies for appropriate delegation of authority and responsibility to its college and/or district academic senate. Among other matters, said policies, at a minimum, shall provide that the governing board or its designees will consult collegially with the academic senate when adopting policies and procedures on academic and professional matters. This requirement to consult collegially shall not limit other rights and responsibilities of the academic senate which are specifically provided in statute or other Board of Governors regulations.
- b. In adopting the policies and procedures described in Subsection (a), the governing

board or its designees shall consult collegially with representatives of the academic senate.

- c. While in the process of consulting collegially, the academic senate shall retain the right to meet with or to appear before the governing board with respect to the views, recommendations, or proposals of the senate. In addition, after consultation with the administration of the college and/or district, the academic senate may present its views and recommendations to the governing board.
- d. The governing board of a district shall adopt procedures for responding to recommendations of the academic senate that incorporate the following:
 - in instances where the governing board elects to rely primarily upon the advice and judgment of the academic senate, the recommendations of the senate will normally be accepted, and only in exceptional circumstances and for compelling reasons will the recommendations not be accepted. If a recommendation is not accepted, the governing board or its designee, upon request of the academic senate, shall promptly communicate its reasons in writing to the academic senate.
 - 2. in instances where the governing board elects to provide for mutual agreement with the academic senate, and agreement has not been reached, existing policy shall remain in effect unless continuing with such policy exposes the district to legal liability or causes substantial fiscal hardship. In cases where there is no existing policy, or in cases where the exposure to legal liability or substantial fiscal hardship requires existing policy to be changed, the governing board may act, after a good faith effort to reach agreement, only for compelling legal, fiscal, or organizational reasons.
- e. An academic senate may assume such responsibilities and perform such functions as may be delegated to it by the governing board of the district pursuant to Subsection (a).
- f. The appointment of faculty members to serve on college or district committees, task forces, or other groups dealing with academic and professional matters, shall be made, after consultation with the chief executive officer or his or her designee, by the academic senate. Notwithstanding this Subsection, the collective bargaining representative may seek to appoint faculty members to committees, task forces, or other groups.

Title 5 § 53204. Scope of Regulations.

Nothing in this Subchapter shall be construed to impinge upon the due process rights of faculty, nor to detract from any negotiated agreements between collective bargaining representatives and district governing boards. It is the intent of the Board of Governors to respect agreements between academic senates and collective bargaining representatives as

to how they will consult, collaborate, share, or delegate among themselves the responsibilities that are or may be delegated to academic senates pursuant to these regulations.

Title 5 § 53205. Duties Assigned by Administration and Governing Board.

No content included in this Regulation other than:

Note: Authority cited: Sections 66700, 71020, 71062 and 71079, Education Code. Reference: Sections 71079 and 72292, Education Code.

Title 5 § 53206. Academic Senate for California Community Colleges.

- a. An Academic Senate for the California Community Colleges has been established through ratification by local academic senates or faculty councils so that the community college faculty of California may have a formal and effective procedure for participating in the formation of state policies on academic and professional matters.
- b. The Board of Governors recognizes the Academic Senate of the California Community Colleges as the representative of community college academic senates or faculty councils before the Board of Governors and Chancellor's Office.

Title 5 § 51023.5. Staff.

- a. The governing board of a community college district shall adopt policies and procedures that provide district and college staff the opportunity to participate effectively in district and college governance. At minimum, these policies and procedures shall include the following:
 - 1. Definitions or categories of positions or groups of positions other than faculty that compose the staff of the district and its college(s) that, for the purposes of this section, the governing board is required by law to recognize or chooses to recognize pursuant to legal authority. In addition, for the purposes of this section, management and non-management positions or groups of positions shall be separately defined or categorized.
 - 2. Participation structures and procedures for the staff positions defined or categorized.
 - 3. In performing the requirements of subsections (a)(1) and (2), the governing board or its designees shall consult with the representatives of existing staff councils, committees, employee organizations, and other such bodies. Where no groups or structures for participation exist that provide representation for the purposes of this section for particular groups of staff, the governing board or its designees, shall broadly inform all staff of the policies and procedures being developed, invite the participation of staff, and provide opportunities for staff to express their views.
 - 4. Staff shall be provided with opportunities to participate in the formulation and development of district and college policies and procedures, and in those processes for jointly developing recommendations for action by the

governing board, that the governing board reasonably determines, in consultation with staff, have or will have a significant effect on staff.

- 5. Except in unforeseeable, emergency situations, the governing board shall not take action on matters significantly affecting staff until it has provided staff an opportunity to participate in the formulation and development of those matters through appropriate structures and procedures as determined by the governing board in accordance with the provisions of this Section.
- 6. The policies and procedures of the governing board shall ensure that the recommendations and opinions of staff are given every reasonable consideration.
- 7. When a college or district task force, committee, or other governance group, is used to consult with staff regarding implementation of this section or to deal with other issues which have been determined to significantly affect staff pursuant to subdivision (a)(4), the appointment of staff representatives shall be made as follows:
 - A. The exclusive representative shall appoint representatives for the respective bargaining unit employees, unless the exclusive representative and the governing board mutually agree in a memorandum of understanding to an alternative appointment process.
 - B. Where a group of employees is not represented by an exclusive agent, the appointment of a representative of such employees on any task force, committee or governance group shall be made by, or in consultation with, any other councils, committees, employee organizations, or other staff groups that the governing board has officially recognized in its policies and procedures for staff participation.
 - C. When the task force, committee or governance group will deal with issues outside the scope of collective bargaining, any other council, committee or staff group, other than an exclusive agent, that the governing board has officially recognized in its policies and procedures for staff participation may be allowed to designate an additional representative. These organizations shall not receive release time, rights, or representation on such task forces, committees, or other governance groups exceeding that offered to the exclusive representative of classified employees.
 - D. In all cases, representatives shall be selected from the category that they represent.
- b. In developing and carrying out policies and procedures pursuant to subsection (a), the district governing board shall ensure that its actions do not dominate or interfere with the formation or administration of any employee organization, or contribute financial or other support to it, or in any way encourage employees to join any organization in preference to another. In addition, in order to comply with Government Code sections 3540, et seq., such procedures for staff participation shall not intrude on matters within the scope of representation under section 3543.2 of the Government Code. Governing boards shall not interfere with the exercise of employee rights to form, join, and participate in the activities of employee organizations of their own choosing for the

purpose of representation on all matters of employer-employee relations. Nothing in this section shall be construed to impinge upon or detract from any negotiations or negotiated agreements between exclusive representatives and district governing boards. It is the intent of the Board of Governors to respect lawful agreements between staff and exclusive representatives as to how they will consult, collaborate, share, or delegate among themselves the responsibilities that are or may be delegated to staff pursuant to these regulations.

- c. Nothing in this section shall be construed to impinge upon the policies and procedures governing the participation rights of faculty and students pursuant to sections 53200-53204, and section 51023.7, respectively.
- d. The governing board of a community college district shall comply substantially with the provisions of this section.

Title 5 §51023.7 Students

(a) The governing board of a community college district shall adopt policies and procedures that provide students the opportunity to participate effectively in district and college governance. Among other matters, said policies and procedures shall include the following:

(1) Students shall be provided an opportunity to participate in formulation and development of district and college policies and procedures that have or will have a significant effect on students. This right includes the opportunity to participate in processes for jointly developing recommendations to the governing board regarding such policies and procedures.

(2) Except in unforeseeable, emergency situations, the governing board shall not take action on a matter having a significant effect on students until it has provided students with an opportunity to participate in the formulation of the policy or procedure or the joint development of recommendations regarding the action.

(3) Governing board procedures shall ensure that at the district and college levels, recommendations and positions developed by students are given every reasonable consideration.

(4) For the purpose of this Section, the governing board shall recognize each associated student organization or its equivalent within the district as provided by Education Code Section 76060, as the representative body of the students to offer opinions and to make recommendations to the administration of a college and to the governing board of a district with regard to district and college policies and procedures that have or will have a significant effect on students. The selection of student representatives to serve on college or district committees, task forces, or other governance groups shall be made, after consultation with designated parties, by the appropriate officially recognized associated student organization(s) within the district.

(b) For the purposes of this Section, district and college policies and procedures that have or will have a "significant effect on students" includes the following:

- 1. Grading policies;
- 2. Codes of student conduct;
- 3. Academic disciplinary policies;
- 4. Curriculum development;
- 5. Courses or programs which should be initiated or discontinued;
- 6. Processes for institutional planning and budget development;
- 7. Standards and policies regarding student preparation and success;
- 8. Student services planning and development;
- 9. Student fees within the authority of the district to adopt; and
- 10. Any other district and college policy, procedure, or related matter that the district governing board determines will have a significant effect on students.

(c) The governing board shall give reasonable consideration to recommendations and positions developed by students regarding district and college policies and procedures pertaining to the hiring and evaluation of faculty, administration, and staff.

(d) Nothing in this Section shall be construed to impinge upon the due process rights of faculty, nor to detract from any negotiations or negotiated agreements between collective bargaining agents and district governing boards. It is the intent of the Board of Governors to respect agreements between academic senates and collective bargaining agents as to how they will consult, collaborate, share or delegate among themselves the responsibilities that are or may be delegated to academic senates pursuant to the regulations on academic senates contained in Sections 53200-53206.

(e) The governing board of a community college district shall comply substantially with policies and procedures adopted in accordance with this Section.